
Topic: City Council Regular Meeting 

You are invited to a Zoom webinar or in person meeting.  Note: Due to the lifting of Covid safety 

restrictions on June 9th, 2022, the city is now required to provide a physical location for all meetings.  A 

computer screen with a microphone and speaker will be set up in council chambers and at least one 

council member, staff member or the mayor will be present, but most council members and staff will 

not be present in person but will be participating via Zoom. 

Topic: 1st Regular City Council Meeting of this month 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83273254975?pwd=aGJhcW1aVEpFc2lDVWpXOEU5clJvdz09 

Passcode: 172825 

Or One tap mobile: 

    US: +12532158782,,83273254975#,,,,*172825#  or +16699006833,,83273254975#,,,,*172825# 

Or Telephone: 

 Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

      US: +1 253 215 8782  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 

8592  or +1 312 626 6799  

Webinar ID: 832 7325 4975 

Passcode: 172825 

 International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kYRNSJrRX 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83273254975?pwd=aGJhcW1aVEpFc2lDVWpXOEU5clJvdz09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kYRNSJrRX


CITY OF LANGLEY DRAFT COUNCIL AGENDA 

Monday July 3, 2023 @ 5:30 P.M. – 112nd Street Langley, WA 

CALL TO ORDER – 5 minutes 

1. Opening Words
2. Roll Call

CONSENT AGENDA (The CONSENT AGENDA consists of routine items that normally do not 
require further Council discussion.) – 2 minutes 

1. Approval of Claim Warrants -  and EFTs in the amount of $44,954.43 …………..…..4-10 
2. Approval of Manual Warrants -  in the amount of $69,954.43 …………….………...11-13 
3. Approval of Payroll Direct Deposit Run (6/15/23) in the amount of $39,073.53  ….14-15 
4. Approval of Commission Meeting Minutes posted since previous Council Meeting
5. Approval of Liquor License for Island Shakespeare Festival …………………………16-17 
6. Approval of Heather Smith Cemetery Board……………………………………………….18 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – 3 minutes 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – 3 minutes 

1. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes of 6/20/2023……………………………………19-27 
2. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes of 6/05/2023 ……………………………..……28-31 
3. Approval of Council Meeting Minutes of 9/06/2022 ………………………………..…32-34 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD* – 30 minutes 

PRESENTATION/GUEST SPEAKER/COMMISSION REPORTS – 15 minutes 

1. Presentation to Council from Dismantling Systematic Racism Commission- Kennedy
Horstman, Chair - 3 mins ………………………………………………………….………35 

2. Presentation to Council from Historic Preservation Commission- Bob Waterman, Chair-
3 minutes …………………………………………………………………………..……36-37 

3. Presentation from Langley Main Street Association-Nicole Whittington-Johnson,
Executive Director – 3 mins

MAYOR’S REPORT – 10 minutes 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 2



NEW BUSINESS 

1. Proposed Contract with Compass Rose Planning Services Ltd, to prepare code
amendments to add multi-family housing as a permitted use within the Fairgrounds
Overlay (LMC 18.10) - Meredith Penny, Director of Community Planning– 5
minutes………………………………………………………………………………38-45 

2. Rabbit Disease – 5 minutes ………………………………………………………46-51 
3. Discussion of Ethics Commission -Sarah Springer- 10 minutes…………………..52 
4. Flag Protocol and Pledge of Allegiance -5 minutes…………………………….53-62 

COUNCIL REPORTS– 15 minutes 

1. Council Member Harolynne Bobis – 3 minutes
2. Council Member Rhonda Salerno – 3 minutes
3. Council Member Thomas Gill – 3 minutes
4. Council Member Craig Cyr – 3 minutes
5. Council Member Gail Fleming – 3 minutes

ADJOURN 

*Public Comment: This is the time on the agenda where Council welcomes comments on subjects of concern or interest

that are not on the agenda or to make known that a member of the public wishes to comment on a particular agenda item at the time
the item is being discussed. We welcome your comments which are very important to us. Note that all comments are limited to three
minutes and should be directed to the presiding officer. Please state your name, address and the subject of your comment. Please
note that we will not be entering into dialogue at this time. The purpose of this agenda item is for you, the public, to inform us, the
Council, about your views. If you have factual questions, staff will be happy to address them, either now or at a later date.

Thank you for participating! If reasonable accommodation of a disability is needed, please 
contact Darlene Baldwin at (360) 221-4246 ext. 17 at least 48 hours prior to this meeting. 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 3



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Chapman Todd

43531 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting
Invoice - 415 3rd St STR Renewal Fee Refund

Refund Dupl ST Rental Fee
001-000-110-558-60-40-01 Professional Fees/Reimbursible - Permit Review $260.00

Refund dupl pymt Receipt #7777 6/6/23
Total Invoice - 415 3rd St STR Renewal Fee Refund $260.00

Total 43531 $260.00
Total Chapman Todd $260.00

Correct Equipment, Inc.
43532 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 49331
401-000-000-534-80-31-01 Parts, Chemicals & Supplies $1,217.00

SKU 8004313, Accutab Pail
Total Invoice - 49331 $1,217.00

Total 43532 $1,217.00
Total Correct Equipment, Inc. $1,217.00

De Lage Landen Financial Services
43533 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 80175810
July copier lease
001-000-010-513-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $29.48
001-000-030-514-20-40-02 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $135.63
001-000-070-521-20-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $129.73
001-000-100-518-30-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $17.69
001-000-110-558-60-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $35.38
001-000-120-558-50-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $29.48
001-000-150-576-80-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $11.79
001-000-180-518-80-40-01 Professional Services $5.90
101-000-000-543-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $41.28
104-000-000-536-10-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $5.90
401-000-000-534-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $64.87
402-000-000-535-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $64.87

Voucher Directory

Fiscal: : 2023 - July
Council Date: : 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 1 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 4



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
403-000-000-531-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $17.70

Total Invoice - 80175810 $589.70
Total 43533 $589.70

Total De Lage Landen Financial Services $589.70

Hanson's Bldg. Supply
43534 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 2306-230347
001-000-100-594-59-00-00 Capital maintenance City Hall $90.15

Back door repair - City Hall
Total Invoice - 2306-230347 $90.15

Total 43534 $90.15
Total Hanson's Bldg. Supply $90.15

Kimbro Trustee, Owen P & Lisa M Kimbro Trustee
43535 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - Surety Agreement Return
633-000-000-586-12-00-02 Trust Account $10,404.00

Kimbro Surety Bond Return
Total Invoice - Surety Agreement Return $10,404.00

Total 43535 $10,404.00
Total Kimbro Trustee, Owen P & Lisa M Kimbro Trustee $10,404.00

Langley Main St Association
43536 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 2021-2125
401-000-000-534-10-49-03 excise tax MainSt credit $3,750.00

Qtr 2 - 2023 Main Street Grant
402-000-000-535-10-49-03 excise tax MainSt credit $3,750.00

Qtr 2 - 2023 Main Street Grant
403-000-000-531-10-49-03 excise tax MainSt credit $3,750.00

Qtr 3 - 2023 Main Street Grant
Total Invoice - 2021-2125 $11,250.00

Total 43536 $11,250.00
Total Langley Main St Association $11,250.00

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 2 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 5



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
North Central Laboratories

43537 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting
Invoice - 488610

402-000-000-535-10-40-04 Sewer Plant Testing $839.78
Sewer Plant Testing Eqpt

Total Invoice - 488610 $839.78
Total 43537 $839.78

Total North Central Laboratories $839.78

PACE Engineers, Inc.
43538 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 87514
001-000-110-558-60-40-01 Professional Fees/Reimbursible - Permit Review $287.50

On-Call SW Support - THIC
001-000-110-558-60-40-06 Professional Services $460.00

6th Street Cottages
408-000-000-594-34-60-04 WWTP-3 Resurface Chlorine CC Walls $3,454.49

Subconsultant Service - Quality Coatings
Total Invoice - 87514 $4,201.99

Total 43538 $4,201.99
Total PACE Engineers, Inc. $4,201.99

Puget Sound Energy
43539 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 0964 June 21 23
105-000-000-557-30-46-01 Utilities/VIC & R/R $61.98

JUne 21 2023
Total Invoice - 0964 June 21 23 $61.98
Invoice - 7646 June 21 23

401-000-000-534-10-46-01 Utilities-Water Dept. $137.54
June 21 2023

Total Invoice - 7646 June 21 23 $137.54
Invoice - 8745 June 21 23

401-000-000-534-10-46-01 Utilities-Water Dept. $1,186.37
June 21 2023

Total Invoice - 8745 June 21 23 $1,186.37
Invoice - 9941 June 21 23

101-000-000-542-63-46-01 Street Lighting Utilities $20.73
June 21 2023

Total Invoice - 9941 June 21 23 $20.73
Total 43539 $1,406.62

Total Puget Sound Energy $1,406.62

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 3 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 6



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Quill Corporation

43540 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting
Invoice - 32995603

Office Supplies
001-000-010-513-10-30-01 Office/operational Supplies $4.38
001-000-030-514-20-30-01 Supplies $20.16
001-000-070-521-20-30-01 Supplies-Printing $20.16
001-000-100-518-30-30-01 Facilities Maint. Supplies $2.63
001-000-110-558-60-30-01 Supplies $5.26
001-000-120-558-50-30-01 Supplies $4.38
001-000-150-576-80-30-01 Supplies $1.75
001-000-180-518-80-30-01 supplies $0.88
101-000-000-543-10-30-01 Supplies $7.01
104-000-000-536-10-30-01 Supplies $0.88
401-000-000-534-10-30-01 Supplies $9.64
402-000-000-535-10-30-01 Supplies $9.64
403-000-000-531-10-30-01 Supplies $0.87

Total Invoice - 32995603 $87.64
Total 43540 $87.64

Total Quill Corporation $87.64

Sebo's DO IT Center
43541 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - A1496853
Tools & Hardware
001-000-100-594-59-00-01 Capital maintenance Fire Hall $27.74

Tools
403-000-000-531-10-47-03 Stormwater Maintenance $169.69

Hardware
Total Invoice - A1496853 $197.43

Total 43541 $197.43
Total Sebo's DO IT Center $197.43

Shred-IT c/o Stericycle, Inc
43542 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 8004177667
June Shredding, 1 bin
001-000-010-513-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $1.76
001-000-030-514-20-40-02 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $9.71
001-000-070-521-20-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $9.71
001-000-110-558-60-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $4.41
001-000-120-558-50-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $0.88
001-000-150-576-80-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $2.65
001-000-180-518-80-40-01 Professional Services $0.88
101-000-000-544-90-40-01 Professional Services $9.71
104-000-000-536-10-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $0.88

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 4 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 7



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
105-000-000-557-30-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $6.18
401-000-000-534-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $20.29
402-000-000-535-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $14.12
403-000-000-531-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $7.05

Total Invoice - 8004177667 $88.23
Total 43542 $88.23

Total Shred-IT c/o Stericycle, Inc $88.23

Sound Publishing Inc
43543 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice -SWR978420
001-000-110-558-60-43-02 Publications/Notifications $132.00

Hearing 6/20/23
Total Invoice -SWR978420 $132.00

Total 43543 $132.00
Total Sound Publishing Inc $132.00

South Whidbey Record
43550 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - SW-217481 104 Weeks
001-000-030-514-20-49-01 Association Dues $128.00

South Whidbey Record Subscription to July 2025
Total Invoice - SW-217481 104 Weeks $128.00

Total 43550 $128.00
Total South Whidbey Record $128.00

South Whidbey School Dist. #206
43545 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - Langley-2023-09
Fuel - May 2023
001-000-070-521-20-31-02 Fuel $694.82

Fuel - May 2023
001-000-150-576-80-31-02 Fuel $193.10

Fuel - May 2023
101-000-000-544-90-31-02 Fuel & Maintenance $65.84

Fuel - May 2023
401-000-000-534-10-31-02 Fuel $182.26

Fuel - May 2023
402-000-000-535-10-31-02 Fuel $330.29

Fuel - May 2023
403-000-000-531-10-31-02 Fuel $55.00

Fuel - May 2023
Total Invoice - Langley-2023-09 $1,521.31

Total 43545 $1,521.31
Total South Whidbey School Dist. #206 $1,521.31

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 5 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 8



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Summitt Law Group

43546 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting
Invoice - 145865

001-000-030-514-20-40-03 Professional Services - Legal $1,516.00
Hood Litigation

Total Invoice - 145865 $1,516.00
Total 43546 $1,516.00

Total Summitt Law Group $1,516.00

United Business Machines
43547 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - INV498053
Kyocera Monthly Maintenance
001-000-010-513-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $9.73
001-000-030-514-20-40-02 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $42.83
001-000-070-521-20-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $44.78
001-000-100-518-30-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $5.84
001-000-110-558-60-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $11.68
001-000-120-558-50-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $9.73
001-000-150-576-80-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $3.89
001-000-180-518-80-40-01 Professional Services $1.95
101-000-000-544-90-40-01 Professional Services $13.63
104-000-000-536-10-40-00 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $1.95
401-000-000-534-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $21.41
402-000-000-535-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $21.41
403-000-000-531-10-40-01 Professional Services - ADMIN Shared Cost $5.85

Total Invoice - INV498053 $194.68
Total 43547 $194.68

Total United Business Machines $194.68

Wa. Assoc. of Sheriffs &
43548 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - 031242
001-000-070-521-20-42-02 Training Registration Cost $375.00

Wasser - Conference Registration
Total Invoice - 031242 $375.00

Total 43548 $375.00
Total Wa. Assoc. of Sheriffs & $375.00

Whidbey Island Center for the Arts
43549 2023 - July - 1st Council Meeting

Invoice - WICA Grant - Year Round Programming 
Driving

105-000-000-557-30-49-01 WICA $1,000.00
Year Round Programming Driving Overnight Stays Brochure Mailing Postage 

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 6 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 9



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
105-000-000-557-30-49-01 WICA $5,500.00

Year Round Programming Overnight Stays - Season Brochure Printing
105-000-000-557-30-49-01 WICA $2,500.00

Year Round Programming Driving Overnight Stays - Contract Professionals
105-000-000-557-30-49-01 WICA $1,000.00

Year Round Programming Driving Overnight Stays - KCTS9 TV - Advertising
Total Invoice - WICA Grant - Year Round 
Programming Driving

$10,000.00

Total 43549 $10,000.00
Total Whidbey Island Center for the Arts $10,000.00

Grand Total Vendor Count 19 $44,499.53

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 2:48:56 PM Page 7 of 7
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 10



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Abraham, Kristen Miller

43498 2023 - June - June Manual
Invoice - 001

Reorganization of City Records
001-000-030-514-20-40-04 Professional Services - Contract $3,120.00

Reorganization of City Records
Total Invoice - 001 $3,120.00

Total 43498 $3,120.00
43528 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - #002
Reorganization of City Records
001-000-030-514-20-40-04 Professional Services - Contract $1,202.50

Reorganization of City Records
Total Invoice - #002 $1,202.50

Total 43528 $1,202.50
Total Abraham, Kristen Miller $4,322.50

Darrel Duhm
43499 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - 1001
2022 WA SAO Annual Report
001-000-030-514-20-40-04 Professional Services - Contract $2,604.00

2022 WA SAO Annual Report
Total Invoice - 1001 $2,604.00

Total 43499 $2,604.00
Total Darrel Duhm $2,604.00

Diamond Rentals & Sales
43529 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - 1-632013
Seawall Park Portable
105-000-000-557-30-40-03 Contract Services (R&R, Chamber 1%, County) $180.00

Seawall Park Portable
Total Invoice - 1-632013 $180.00

Total 43529 $180.00
Total Diamond Rentals & Sales $180.00

Voucher Directory

Fiscal: : 2023 - June
Council Date: : 2023 - June - June Manual

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 4:00:25 PM Page 1 of 3
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 11



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
Heritage Bank

6.21.23 ACH Deposit Ticket books 2023 - June - June Manual
Invoice - 6/21/2023 Bank Charge - 4 Deposit Ticket 
Books

001-000-030-514-20-48-06 Credit fees $83.41
Deposit ticket books (4)

Total Invoice - 6/21/2023 Bank Charge - 4 Deposit 
Ticket Books

$83.41

Total 6.21.23 ACH Deposit Ticket books $83.41
Bank Withdrawal 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - 6/29/2023 Cashier Check Fee
Cashier's ck fee - Tesla
001-000-030-514-20-48-06 Credit fees $7.00

Cashier's Ck Fee - Tesla Police Vehicle
Total Invoice - 6/29/2023 Cashier Check Fee $7.00

Total Bank Withdrawal $7.00
Debit to Acct 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - Heritage Analysis Fee May 2023
Banking fee
001-000-030-514-20-48-06 Credit fees $196.87

6/15/23 May Bank Fee
Total Invoice - Heritage Analysis Fee May 2023 $196.87

Total Debit to Acct $196.87
Total Heritage Bank $287.28

Invoice Cloud
EFT 6.6.23 Invoice Cloud 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - 384-2023_5
Portal Access, Paperless Invoices
001-000-030-514-20-48-06 Credit fees $157.40

5/2023 Portal Acccess, Invoices for Paperless Customers
Total Invoice - 384-2023_5 $157.40

Total EFT 6.6.23 Invoice Cloud $157.40
Total Invoice Cloud $157.40

St of WA Dept of Revenue
6.26.23 EFT-DOR May Excise Tax 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - May 2023 Excise/Sales Tax
May 2023 Excise/Sales Tax
401-000-000-534-10-49-02 Excise Tax $2,683.95

May Excise Tax
401-000-000-534-10-49-03 excise tax MainSt credit ($2,578.45)

May Excise Tax Credit
402-000-000-535-10-49-02 Excise Tax $969.86

May Excise Tax

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 4:00:25 PM Page 2 of 3
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 12



Vendor Number Reference Account Number Description Amount
402-000-000-535-10-49-03 excise tax MainSt credit ($931.74)

Max Excise Tax Credit
403-000-000-531-10-49-02 S/S Excise Tax $297.89

May Excise Tax
403-000-000-531-10-49-03 excise tax MainSt credit ($286.18)

May Excise Tax Credit
Total Invoice - May 2023 Excise/Sales Tax $155.33

Total 6.26.23 EFT-DOR May Excise Tax $155.33
Total St of WA Dept of Revenue $155.33

Tesla, Inc
Cashier's Check 2023 - June - June Manual

Invoice - 7SAYGDEF2PF816337
Tesla VIN 7SAYGDEF2PF816337
303-000-000-594-21-60-01 Police vehicle purchase $62,247.92

Tesla VIN 7SAYGDEF2PF816337
Total Invoice - 7SAYGDEF2PF816337 $62,247.92

Total Cashier's Check $62,247.92
Total Tesla, Inc $62,247.92

Grand Total Vendor Count 7 $69,954.43

 Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/29/2023 4:00:25 PM Page 3 of 3
Voucher Directory

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 13



Execution Time: 57 second(s)  Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/28/2023 6:00:38 PM Page 1 of 1 

Direct Deposit Activity 

Direct Deposit Activity

Name Social Security # Bank Name Account Number Type Amount 
Direct Deposit Run - 6/16/2023 6/15/2023 

Baldwin, Darlene $3,168.08 

Cattand, Alexis $1,881.51 

Chaplin, Scott $1,653.11 

Durr, Robert J. $2,659.16 

Grone, Wanda J $3,090.77 

Grove, Timothy J. $3,176.72 

Hamilton, Bryan E. $2,417.08 

Hathaway, Nicholas G $2,076.79 

Herzberg, Robert $445.04 

Liggitt, Charles E. $2,408.89 

Marks, Joshua W. $2,173.22 

McDivitt, Tara J $1,594.70 

Pace, Jeremiah J. $2,007.10 

Penny, Meredith B $2,773.02 

Perry, Randi M. $2,813.69 

Proffitt, Austin L $1,703.00 

Wasser, Tavier  $3,031.65 

$39,073.53 

$39,073.53 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 14



Execution Time: 57 second(s)  Printed by CITYOFLANGLEY1\WGrone on 6/28/2023 6:00:38 PM Page 1 of 1 

Direct Deposit Activity 

Direct Deposit Activity

Name Social Security # Bank Name Account Number Type Amount 
Direct Deposit Run - 6/16/2023 6/15/2023 

Baldwin, Darlene $3,168.08 

Cattand, Alexis $1,881.51 

Chaplin, Scott $1,653.11 

Durr, Robert J. $2,659.16 

Grone, Wanda J $3,090.77 

Grove, Timothy J. $3,176.72 

Hamilton, Bryan E. $2,417.08 

Hathaway, Nicholas G $2,076.79 

Herzberg, Robert $445.04 

Liggitt, Charles E. $2,408.89 

Marks, Joshua W. $2,173.22 

McDivitt, Tara J $1,594.70 

Pace, Jeremiah J. $2,007.10 

Penny, Meredith B $2,773.02 

Perry, Randi M. $2,813.69 

Proffitt, Austin L $1,703.00 

Wasser, Tavier  $3,031.65 

$39,073.53 

$39,073.53 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 15



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 16



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 17



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 18



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 19



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 20



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 21



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 22



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 23



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 24



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 25



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 26



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 27



 Council Meeting Minutes  

Monday, September 6, 2022 

Meeting was called to order by Mayor Scott Chaplin at 5:30pm 

ROLL CALL  

In attendance:  Council Member Harolynne Bobis, Council Member Rhonda Salerno, Council 

Member Thomas Gill, Council Member Craig Cyr, Meredith Penny Director of Community 

Tavier Wasser Chief of Police, and Darlene Baldwin Interim City Clerk 

SPECIAL INFORMATION ITEM 

1. Coles Valley Development Application Process Legalities- Meredith Penny, Director of

Community Planning & Alexandra Kenyon, for Mike Kenyon City Attorney

Appearance of Fairness Doctrine has been triggered now that the PUD application has been 

filed- Alexandra Kenyon, stepping in for Mike Kenyon City Attorney 

a. Discussions must occur in properly noticed council meetings. All discussion will take

place on record at a public hearing.

b. Council Members cannot have communications with proponents or opponents of the

project, this sort of discussion would become Ex Parte.

c. If approached by a community member you can simply blame your inability to talk about

the project on the fact that the city attorney has advised that you cannot talk to anyone

regarding the pending land use application.

Land Acknowledgement 

Motion to Approve Excused Absence of Council Member Gail Fleming from 

attending Council Meeting  

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

2nd: Council Member Thomas Gill 

Motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Consent Agenda 

Motion: Council Member Thomas Gill 

2nd: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

Motion passed unanimously. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Agenda 

Motion: Council Member Thomas Gill 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 28



2nd: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

Discussion:  

Council Member Rhonda Salerno-Switch order under Presentations; CCAC 1st and Ethics 2nd  

Motion Passed unanimously with amendments 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion to Approve Minutes 05/16/2022 

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

2nd: Council Member Harolynne Bobis 

Motion passed unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Dominique Emerson- Would like an elevator addition to be considered as part of the Library 

design. If an elevator was added the citizens would have access to the second floor. Would also 

like to see better set up for bicycles.  

Steph Christensen-Confused about what communication she can have regarding Coles Valley 

project. Question on critical slopes and planning for these areas 

PRESENTATION/GUEST SPEAKER/COMMISSION REPORTS 

1. Climate Crisis Action Committee- Linda Irvine, Chair

a. Received $170,000 solar grant for South Whidbey Elementary school installation

slated for next summer

b. There will be a 1.1 million Kicking Gas Campaign to get 100 homes into electric heat

pumps

c. Supported middle school ALE students to bring a zero-waste ordinance before

council

d. Held a grey water webinar to explore reusing household water for irrigation

e. Hosted a fair booth four days at the Highland County Fair

2. Ethics Board Presentation-Lily Fox, Chair

a. No formal advisory request currently

b. Looking at setting up training for city employees, council, and commission members

c. Lily will be resigning in January, so more volunteers are needed

MAYOR’S REPORT 

1. Review of 2022 Budget Narrative and update on 2023 budget process

2. Chamber has invited council to attend 9/14/2022 meeting to discuss housing crisis

3. Lots of calls coming in regarding the library

a. Council Member Harolynne Bobis will become the Library Liaison

a. Whidbey Camano Tourism Committee- joint Tourism Committee update

b. Question from citizen as to whether or not this agency is in fact a government

organization

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 29



ORDINANCE/RESOLUTIONS 

1. Ordinance repealing section 18.22.190 of the Langley Municipal Code, wireless

communications facilities; adopting a new chapter 18.23 of the Langley Municipal Code

related to wireless communications facilities; providing for the severability; and

establishing an effective date- 2nd reading- Meredith Penny, Director of Community

Planning

Motion to Approve Ordinance repealing section 18.22.190 of the Langley 

Municipal Code, wireless communications facilities; adopting a new chapter 

18.23 of the Langley Municipal Code related to wireless communications  

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

2nd: Council Member Harolynne Bobis 

Motion passed unanimously. 

Mark Wahl, presentation on wireless code 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Presentation to Council on Safe Streets and Roads for all, Action Plan funding

partnership opportunity- Dominique Emerson, Chair PWAC

Motion to direct the mayor to submit a letter of commitment to the Island 

Regional Transportation Planning Organization for Langley’s participation 

in the Safe Streets Program   

Motion: Council Member Craig Cyr 

2nd  Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

Call for the Question: 

Call: Council Member Harolynne Bobis 

2nd: Council Member Craig Cyr 

Motion passed unanimously 

2. Initial discussion on the process for reviewing the Port of South Whidbey zoning code

amendment application to add housing as an allowed use in the Fairgrounds Overlay –

Meredith Penny, Director of Community Planning and Stan Reeves, Executive Director

of the Port of South Whidbey

Motion to Approve letter to Liz Chaffin the ARPA Project Coordinator for 

Budget Island County  

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

2nd  Council Member Thomas Gill 

Motion passed unanimously 

Small Works and Consultant Roster- Meredith Penny, Director of Community Planning 

Wait on this agenda item and discuss at upcoming Special Meeting 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 30



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Discussion and Approval of 2023 Council Work Plan- Council Member Rhonda Salerno

Discussion:

Change wording from “estimated completion date” to “estimated start date”

Change wording from “lawyer” to “attorney”

Add under administrative - emotional training with Parenthesis Group

Change wording from “conduct” to “attend and complete the anti-racism” self study

Change wording from “board” to “commission”

Change wording from “tree ordinance” to “update tree laws including fee schedule”

Motion to Approve Version 5 of draft work plan and finalize with changes 

made by council  

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

2nd  Council Member Thomas Gill 

Motion passed unanimously with amendments 

2. Presentation to Council on Lexipol’s Description of Services and Customer Toolkit

Policy Power Point- Tavier Wasser, Chief of Police

COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Council Member Thomas Gill

a. Attended the Cemetery Commission meeting, they are looking at raising fees

2. Council Member Harolynne Bobis

a. Meetings are getting long again

3. Council Member Rhonda Salerno

a. The city received the Governor’s 2022 Award for Smart Growth

b. Today some fencing went up around property on Cascade, this is the property

used for parking and is up for sale

4. Council Member Craig Cyr

a. Observed and shared appreciation of what was completed at tonight’s meeting

5. Council Member Gail Fleming - not present

ADJOURNMENT- 8:06pm Mayor Scott Chaplin 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 31



 Council Meeting Minutes 

Monday, June 5, 2023 

Meeting was called to order by Mayor Scott Chaplin at 5:30pm 

Land Acknowledgement 

ROLL CALL  

In attendance:  Council Member Harolynne Bobis, Council Member Rhonda Salerno, Council 

Member Thomas Gill, Council Member Craig Cyr, Council Member Gail Fleming, Meredith 

Penny Community Planning Director, Randi Perry Director of Public Works, Wanda Grone 

Finance Director, Tavier Wasser, Chief of Police and Darlene Baldwin Interim City Clerk  

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Consent Agenda 

Motion: Council Member Harolynne Bobis 

2nd: Council Member Craig Cyr 

Discussion: 

Council Member Gail Fleming - Add Discussion on item #6 

Motion Passed unanimously with amendment 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Approve Agenda 

Motion: Council Member Thomas Gill 

2nd: Council Member Gail Fleming 

Discussion: 

Council Member Rhonda Salerno-move Discussion items to after Mayors Report 

Council Member Craig Cyr-remove Executive Session from Agenda 

Motion Passed Unanimously with amendments 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion to Approve Minutes 5/15/2023 

Motion: Council Member Gail Fleming 

2nd: Council Member Harolynne Bobis 

Motion Passed Unanimously with amendments 

Motion to Approve Special Executive Minutes of 5/22/23 

Motion: Council Member Thomas Gill 

2nd: Council Member Rhonda Salerno 

Motion Passed Unanimously with amendments 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

1. Skip DeMuth- concern with Occupancy Permit for the Tiny Homes project and would

like to see the process move forward

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 32



PRESENTATIONS/GUEST SPEAKER/COMMISSION REPORTS 

1. Presentation to Council from Civil Service Commission – Savannah Erickson, Acting

Chair

Civil Service needs to fill two volunteer positions: one commission member and the

Secretary & Chief Examiner which is mandated by law.

2. Presentation to Council from Parks & Open Space Commission – Emily Gunn, Chair

Work on updating the Tree Ordinance continues. Continuing to work on Outer Loop trail

connection.

3. Presentation to Council from Planning Advisory Commission- Greg Easton, Chair

Looking for an alternate for the commission. Spent a good amount of time on the

Housing Action Plan including community meetings. Also working on the Critical Area

Ordinance. Been working on several additional ordinances to bring to council.

Motion to hear 3 to 4 minutes of details on memo presented by Greg Easton 

Motion: Council Member Craig Cyr 

2nd: Council Member 

Motion failed no 2nd 

MAYORS REPORT 

1. Public Record Grant was submitted

2. Interviews for the City Administrator/Clerk position have been held

3. Been looking at gaps in local economy, 2nd homes not using as much water and not

spending as much money in community at local businesses

4. Library Records plan will be discussed at the next meeting

DISCUSSION 

1. Update and Discussion regarding Seawall Park graffiti- Randi Perry, Director of Public

Works

2. Discussion of Meeting Decorum and Administrative Interference- Scott Chaplin, Mayor

We are here to deliberate, important to follow Robert Rules

Important to address the subject not the person

Administrative interference is not part of the process for appointments to commissions

Talk to the staff via the mayor

Agendas are drafted by the mayor, any changes to the agenda go through the mayor or

are removed by motion at the beginning of the meeting

Agendas are drafted by the mayor, any changes to the agenda go through the mayor or

are removed by motion at the beginning of the meeting

3. Approval of Commission Volunteers: PAB Reappointment of Casey Gloster, PWAC Ben

Courteau and Reappointment of Tom Fox

Motion to Approve Commission Volunteers

Motion: Council Member Rhonda Salerno

2nd:  Council Member Gail Fleming

Motion Passed unanimously

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 33



UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. Approval of Hearing Examiner Contract Agreement- Meredith Penny, Director of

Community Planning

Motion to Approve Hearing Examiner Contract

Motion: Council Member Harolynne Bobis

2nd:  Council Member Gail Fleming

Motion Passed unanimously

COUNCIL REPORTS 

1. Council Member Harolynne Bobis

a. Concerned with staffing levels

2. Rhonda Salerno

a. Template for Commissions is close to being ready to send to task force

b. Met with Snohomish Tribal members about a recognition wall to display photos

and other items on site

c. June 10th, Whidbey’s Water Future Conference will be held at WICA

3. Council Member Thomas Gill

a. Attended Fair Association meeting. They will be going back to holding meetings

with more formalities

4. Council Member Craig Cyr

a. Island Transit ran the new route on June 4th. There was a bus running up and

down the island for the first time. Ridership is picking up. Electric Sedan

Vanpools will be starting up as well

b. Attended two meet and greets with applicants

5. Council Member Gail Fleming

a. Appreciated the meet and greets with applicants

ADJOURNMENT- 6:52 pm Mayor Scott Chaplin 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 34



Dismantling Systemic Racism (DSR) Commission Workplan Status Report
For July 3, 2023 City Council Meeting

General Status - Membership
In March, Cristina Rose withdrew from the commission for health reasons. In the same month, Crystal Ogle joined the

commission. Several DSR member terms will expire in October of this year and we expect to lose our youngest member

who will be heading to college in the fall. Commission member recruiting is under way.

Learning Priority

DSR Self-Learning Program
● In the Fall of 2022, the program was offered to the Mayor, City Council and Directors, four of whom participated

● To encourage broader participation (including city staff):

o The materials have been updated for posting on the city website

o The DSR is working to identify community members/organizations to partner with the DSR so that the

program can be offered to the community.

Holidays of Note - The DSR recommendation made to council regarding the commemoration of holidays of note

Q3/4 Workplan Items
● Post the self-learning materials to the website

● Pursue the transition to a community-based approach and offer a program series to community members.

Community Wellbeing
● The DSR met with Joann Quintana of Langley Creates regarding the Cascade Connector project. A member of the DSR

may independently support that effort moving forward.

● The DSR Incident Report form was finalized.

Q3/4 Workplan Items
Recognizing that the DSR is primarily a policy advisory group to the city council, we are interested in engaging the

community to take on some activities that have been generated or directed to the DSR but might be more appropriately

pursued outside of the formal DSR, examples include:

o BIPOC community engagement

o Self-learning program

o Participation with the Langley Creative District/Langley Creates

City Policies, Procedures and Planning

Police Policy Review
The Q2 workplan included review of police policies, but this work is being delayed so that Chief Wasser can address more

pressing priorities. We will revisit police policy review in Q1 of 2024.

Commission Working Group
The DSR chair has been engaged with a commission working group. Supporting activities to date include a draft standard

commission page template and a municipal code appropriate template for the creation of commissions.

Q3/4 Workplan Items
●
● Review state legislative changes and advocate legislative position/s or actions for City Council as appropriate

● Update DSR webpage content/format (possibly pending Commission Ad Hoc working group recommendations)

● Participate in comp plan review and update

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 35



Report to City Council July 3, 2023 

Progress regarding missions of the HPC since 2/6/2023: 
1. Register of Historic Places

Nomination form for Anderson Farmhouse (141 Al Anderson Avenue) drafted and submitted to 
owners Dorothy Anderson and Tamara Knapp for review. 

2015. West side Anderson farmhouse. 

2017. Exterior restoration complete. 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 36



2017. Interior restoration of living/dining room. 

2. Resource for History of Langley:

1. Building Biographies Website

Continuing to update photos and information as facades change and new businesses
appear.

2. Working with the Langley Main Street Association to place QR codes detailing the history
of businesses on/in selected businesses.

Sample 

3. Will hang historic photographs in WICA in November.

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 37



CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
CITY OF LANGLEY AND COMPASS ROSE PLANNING SERVICES LTD 

THIS CONTRACT FOR SERVICES (“Agreement”) is entered into this ____ day of 
, 2023, by and between the City of Langley, a municipal corporation of the State of 

Washington (“City”), and Compass Rose Planning Services Ltd, a [private limited company] 
(“Contractor”), in consideration of the mutual benefits and conditions contained herein.  

WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have certain services performed for its citizens; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Contractor perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Scope of Services.  Contractor shall perform those services described on Exhibit A attached
hereto, which is incorporated by this reference as if fully set forth.  In performing such services,
Contractor shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local statutes, rules, and
ordinances applicable to the performance of such services and the handling of any funds used
in connection therewith. To the extent that any term or provision of this Agreement conflicts
with any term or provision of Exhibit A or any other exhibit hereto, the terms of this Agreement
shall control.

2. Compensation and Method of Payment.  Contractor will invoice the City monthly based
upon the rate set forth in Exhibit A.  Contractor shall be paid a total amount not to exceed nine
thousand Dollars ($9,450.00) without written modification of this Agreement signed by the
City.  The City shall pay Contractor for services rendered under this Agreement within ten (10)
days after City Council voucher approval.  Contractor agrees to complete and return the
attached Exhibit B (Taxpayer Identification Number) to the City prior to or along with the first
invoice.

3. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period
commencing July 3, 2023 and ending December 31, 2023, unless earlier terminated in
accordance with Section 9 herein or extended by written amendment in accordance with
Section 12 herein.

4. Independent Contractor.  The City and Contractor agree that Contractor is an independent
contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement.  Nothing in this
Agreement shall be considered to create an employer-employee relationship between the
parties hereto.  Neither Contractor nor any of Contractor’s employees shall be entitled, by
virtue of the services provided under this Agreement, to any benefits afforded to City
employees.  The City shall not be responsible for paying, withholding, or otherwise deducting
any customary state or federal payroll deductions, including but not limited to FICA, FUTA,

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 38



state industrial insurance, state workers’ compensation, or for otherwise assuming the duties 
of an employer with respect to Contractor or Contractor’s employees. 

5. Indemnification.  Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its officers,
officials, employees and volunteers from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions of
Contractor in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages caused by the
sole negligence of the City.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to RCW
4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to persons or
damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of the Contractor
and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the Contractor’s liability
hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Contractor’s negligence.  It is further specifically
and expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Contractor’s
waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this
indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of
this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

6. Insurance.  Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of this Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from
or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by Contractor, its agents,
representatives, or employees.  Contractor’s maintenance of insurance as required by this
Agreement shall not be construed to limit Contractor’s liability to the coverage provided by
such insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in
equity.

A. Scope of Required Insurance.  Contractor shall maintain insurance of the types and
coverage described below: 

1. The requirement for automobile liability insurance has been waived for this particular
contract, provided the contractor shall never use a vehicle in furtherance of their
contractual services for the City.

2. Commercial general liability insurance, written with limits no less than $1,000,000
each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate, which shall be at least as broad as ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations,
independent contractors, stop gap liability, personal injury and advertising injury.  The
City shall be named as an additional insured under Contractor’s Commercial General
Liability insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the City, using an
additional insured endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26.

3. Workers’ compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the
State of Washington.

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 39



B. Additional Insurance Provisions.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current
A.M. Best rating of not less than A:VII.  Contractor’s automobile liability and commercial
general liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, that they shall
be primary insurance as respects the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured
pool coverage maintained by the City shall be excess of Contractor’s insurance and shall
not contribute with it.  Contractor shall provide the City with written notice of any policy
cancellation within two (2) business days of Contractor’s receipt of such notice.

C. Certificates of Insurance.  Within fifteen (15) days of the execution of this Agreement,
Contractor shall deliver original certificates and a copy of amendatory endorsements,
including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured endorsement, evidencing the
insurance coverage required by this Section 6.

D. Failure to Maintain Insurance.  Contractor’s failure to maintain insurance as required shall
constitute a material breach of this Agreement, upon which the City may, after giving five
(5) business days’ notice to the Contractor to correct the breach, immediately terminate
this Agreement or, at its sole discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and
all premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City
on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due Contractor from
the City.

E. Full Availability of Contractor Limits.  If Contractor maintains higher insurance limits than
the minimums shown above, the City shall be insured for the full available limits of
Commercial General and excess or umbrella liability maintained by Contractor,
irrespective of whether such limits maintained by Contractor are greater than those required
by this Agreement or whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences
limits of liability lower than those maintained by Contractor.

7. Taxes, Licenses and Permits.

A. Contractor shall procure and maintain a City business license in accordance with applicable
City code prior to beginning work under this Agreement.  Contractor assumes
responsibility for and ensures that all contractors, subcontractors and suppliers shall also
obtain a City business license.

B. Contractor acknowledges that it is responsible for the payment of all charges and taxes
applicable to the services performed under this Agreement, including taxes and fees
assessed pursuant to applicable City code, and Contractor agrees to comply with all
applicable laws regarding the reporting of income and maintenance of records, and with all
other requirements and obligations imposed pursuant to applicable law.  If the City does
not receive, or is assessed, made liable, or responsible in any manner for such charges or
taxes, Contractor shall reimburse and hold the City harmless from such costs, including
attorneys’ fees.  Contractor shall also require all contractors, subcontractors and suppliers
to pay all charges and taxes in accordance with this Section 7.

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 40



C. In the event Contractor fails to pay any taxes, assessments, penalties, or fees imposed by
the City or any other governmental body, then Contractor authorizes the City to deduct and
withhold and/or pay over to the appropriate governmental body those unpaid amounts upon
demand by the governmental body.  This provision shall, at a minimum, apply to taxes and
fees imposed by City ordinance.  Any such payments shall be deducted from the
Contractor’s total compensation.

8. Audits and Inspections.  The records and documents with respect to all matters covered by
this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit by law during the
term of this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to conduct an audit of Contractor’s
financial statement and condition and to a copy of the results of any such audit or other
examination performed by or on behalf of Contractor.

9. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated by the City at any time upon seven (7) days’
written notice; provided, that if Contractor’s insurance coverage is canceled for any reason, the
City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement as provided in Subsection 6(D) herein.

10. Discrimination Prohibited.  Contractor shall comply with all Equal Employment Opportunity
regulations and shall not discriminate against any employee, applicant for employment, or any
person seeking the services of the Contractor on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex,
age, national origin, marital status or the presence of any sensory, mental or physical handicap.

11. Assignment and Subcontract.  Contractor shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the
services contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the City.

12. Entire Agreement; Modification.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement between
the parties hereto, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of
this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind any of the parties hereto.  Proposed changes
which are mutually agreed upon shall be incorporated by written amendments or addenda
signed by both parties.

13. Notices.  Notices required hereunder shall be delivered via first class U.S. mail to the addresses
below: 

To the City of Langley: City Clerk 
City of Langley 
P.O. Box 366  
Langley, WA 98260 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 41



To Contractor:  Director 
Compass Rose Planning Services Ltd 
1319 Smith Road, 495  
Crofton, BC V0R 1R0  
Canada 

14. Security.  Contractor will protect confidential information provided by the City pursuant to
this Agreement by adhering to policies governing physical, electronic, and managerial
safeguards against unauthorized access to an unauthorized disclosure of confidential
information.  Security standards shall meet or exceed Washington State Office of the Chief
Information Officer Standard No. 141.10.  Only authorized employees of the Contractor shall
have access to the City’s confidential information, and only for the purposes specified in this
Agreement.  Contractor shall, within 24 hours of discovery, report to the City any use, access
to or disclosure of the City’s confidential information not previously authorized by the City.

15. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit,
arbitration, or other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the parties
specifically understand and agree that venue shall be properly and exclusively in Island
County, Washington.  The prevailing party in any such action shall be entitled to its costs of
suit, including attorneys’ fees and expert witness fees.

BY THEIR SIGNATURES BELOW, the authorized agents of the parties enter into this Agreement 
as of the day and year first written above.  

CITY OF LANGLEY CONTRACTOR 

By:  By: 

Scott Chaplin, Mayor Brigid Reynolds, Director 

Attest/Authenticated: 

Darlene Baldwin, Interim Clerk 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 42



EXHIBIT A: 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Contractor shall furnish and perform services including, but not limited to, the description of work 
and indicated below: 

Fairground Overlay and Related Code Amendments 

The following details the scope of work to prepare two ordinances and five related code amendments to 
permit multi-family housing use in the Fairgrounds Overlay (Ch. 18.10).  

Task Estimated Number of Hours 
Phase I – Initial Review 
• Review application and proposed additional code amendments 2 
• Application to amend the following:

o Fairgrounds Overlay (Ch. 18.10)
o P1 (Public Use) zone district (Ch. 18.19)
o Land Uses (Ch. 18.09)
o Definitions (Sec. 18.01.040) for secondary use
o Performance Standards – Multi-family (Ch. 18.25) related to

open space
• Determine completeness of application and prepare draft letter to

applicant for signature by the Director of Planning.
2 

• Prepare Notice of Development Application for publishing and
distribution by the Director of Planning

2 

• Identify additional information required.  The initial review has
identified the following information as outstanding
o The list of names and addresses of owners and residents of

properties within 500 feet of the subject properties and pre-
stamped envelopes for the same.

3 

• Present application to the PAB and Council for confirmation to
move forward with drafting code amendments

10 

• Present proposed amendments to PAB and Council for initial
input before noticing

10 

• Prepare SEPA determination and notice of 14-day public
comment period
o Director of Planning to sign, publish and distribute the

SEPA determination.

5 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 43



• Prepare referral documents to be sent to applicable agencies to
include but not limited to the following.  Additional agencies to
be determined by the Director of Planning and referrals to be
sent by the Director of Planning.
o Island County
o Island County Fair
o South Whidbey School District
o Langley Creates Steering Committee
o South Whidbey Community Center
o City of Langley internal referrals
o Director of Planning to send to Department of Commerce

for 60 day or expedited review
o Director Planning to send for legal review

2 

Phase II – Prepare Draft Ordinance and Staff Report 
• Director of Planning will receive all public comments and

forward them to the Consultant.  The Consultant will maintain a
public comment matrix.

8 

• Prepare draft ordinance and staff report, incorporating public,
agency, PAB, and Council comments

20 

• Incorporate any changes into final draft ordinance and staff
report

5 

• Prepare PAB public hearing notice
o Director of Planning to publish and mail public hearing

notice

2 

Phase III - Adoption 
• Prepare Findings of Fact 6 
• Present ordinance and code amendments to PAB at public

hearing
5 

• Present to Council for 1st and 2nd reading 8 
• Director of Planning to submit approved ordinance and code

amendments to the Department of Commerce
Contingency for Additional Inquiries 5 
Total 105 

Compensation 
The estimated number of hours to complete this scope of work is 105 hours at an hourly rate of $90/hour 
for a total estimated project cost of $9,450.  

As detailed above, the scope of work includes seven meetings - three PAB meetings including the public 
hearing and four Council meetings.  Meeting attendance will be remote.   

Any additional meetings will be billed at an hourly rate of $90/hour. 

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 44



EXHIBIT B: 
TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

CITY OF LANGLEY 
P.O. Box 366  
112 Second Street  
Langley, WA 98260 
Tel: (360) 221-4246 

In order for you to receive reimbursement from the City of Langley, we must have either a 
Taxpayer Identification Number or a Social Security Number.  The Internal Revenue Code 
requires a Form 1099 for payments to every person or organization other than a corporation for 
services performed in the course of trade or business.  Further, the law requires us to withhold 20% 
on reportable amounts paid to unincorporated persons who have not supplied us with their correct 
Tax Identification Number or Social Security Number. 

Please complete the following information request form and return it to the City of Langley before 
or along the submittal of the first billing voucher. 

Please check the appropriate category: 

_X__ Corporation ___ Partnership ___ Government Agency 

___ Individual/Sole Proprietor ___ Other (please explain) 

EIN # 98-1651569 

TIN#: __ __-__ __ __ __ __ __ __ 

SS#: __ __ __ -__ __ - __ __ __ __ 

Print Name: Brigid Reynolds, 

Print Title:  Director  

Business Name: Compass Rose Planning Services Ltd. 

Business Address: 1319 Smith Road, PO Box 495, Crofton, BC V0R 1R0 
      

City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 45



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 46



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 47



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 48



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 49



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 50



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 51



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 52



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 53



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 54



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 55



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 56



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 57



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 58



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 59



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 60



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 61



City of Langley Council Meeting - Draft Agenda 
Monday July 3rd, 2023 5:30pm

06/30/2023 62


	0 a  Zoom First CM of Month
	0 b   2023 07 03  Agenda Draft fillin
	1 2023-07-03 Payables Voucher Directory
	Chapman Todd
	43531
	Invoice - 415 3rd St STR Renewal Fee Refund


	Correct Equipment, Inc.
	43532
	Invoice - 49331


	De Lage Landen Financial Services
	43533
	Invoice - 80175810


	Hanson's Bldg. Supply
	43534
	Invoice - 2306-230347


	Kimbro Trustee, Owen P & Lisa M Kimbro Trustee
	43535
	Invoice - Surety Agreement Return


	Langley Main St Association
	43536
	Invoice - 2021-2125


	North Central Laboratories
	43537
	Invoice - 488610


	PACE Engineers, Inc.
	43538
	Invoice - 87514


	Puget Sound Energy
	43539
	Invoice - 0964 June 21 23
	Invoice - 7646 June 21 23
	Invoice - 8745 June 21 23
	Invoice - 9941 June 21 23


	Quill Corporation
	43540
	Invoice - 32995603


	Sebo's DO IT Center
	43541
	Invoice - A1496853


	Shred-IT c/o Stericycle, Inc
	43542
	Invoice - 8004177667


	Sound Publishing Inc
	43543
	Invoice -SWR978420


	South Whidbey Record
	43550
	Invoice - SW-217481 104 Weeks


	South Whidbey School Dist. #206
	43545
	Invoice - Langley-2023-09


	Summitt Law Group
	43546
	Invoice - 145865


	United Business Machines
	43547
	Invoice - INV498053


	Wa. Assoc. of Sheriffs &
	43548
	Invoice - 031242


	Whidbey Island Center for the Arts
	43549
	Invoice - WICA Grant - Year Round Programming Driving



	2 2023-06-30 June Manual Voucher Directory
	Abraham, Kristen Miller
	43498
	Invoice - 001

	43528
	Invoice - #002


	Darrel Duhm
	43499
	Invoice - 1001


	Diamond Rentals & Sales
	43529
	Invoice - 1-632013


	Heritage Bank
	6.21.23 ACH Deposit Ticket books
	Invoice - 6/21/2023 Bank Charge - 4 Deposit Ticket Books

	Bank Withdrawal
	Invoice - 6/29/2023 Cashier Check Fee

	Debit to Acct
	Invoice - Heritage Analysis Fee May 2023


	Invoice Cloud
	EFT 6.6.23 Invoice Cloud
	Invoice - 384-2023_5


	St of WA Dept of Revenue
	6.26.23 EFT-DOR May Excise Tax
	Invoice - May 2023 Excise/Sales Tax


	Tesla, Inc
	Cashier's Check
	Invoice - 7SAYGDEF2PF816337



	3 2023-06-16 Direct Deposit Activity for Payroll
	4 2023-06-16 Direct Deposit Activity for Payroll
	5 Shakespeare Festival Liquor
	6 Heather Smith Cemetery
	7B 2022-09-06 council draft minutes
	7A 2023- 06 -05 Council Meeting Draft Minutes
	8 PRES a DSR Status Report 2023-07-03
	9 NB a Contract  FORM SERVICES AGREEMENT -Compass Rose July 2023 Signed
	10 Pres b Bob Waterman Report to City Council July 3



